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There is a need in every community to remain connected to its history.

The following exhibit (Exhibit 16) and the buildings indicated thereon are a first step in a historic
site inventory. The Township should continue this effort in order to ensure that the rich heritage
of Liberty Township is not lost over time.

This initial inventory has been taken from the perspective that any building or site with
significance to the residents of Liberty Township, whether or not it is eligible for the state or
federal register of historic sites should be identified. This will enable prospective developers to
be aware in advance that there are areas that the Township wishes to remain protected or
considered for integration in the context of a development.

HISTORICAL AND VISUAL RESOURCES

The area of New Jersey which was to become Warren County was originally included in West
Jersey, the partition line running a little east of its northeast corner. When Hunterdon County
was created in 1713 and 1714 it consisted of all of the upper part of West Jersey. It incorporated
Warren C/ounty, which remained a part of Hunterdon County until Morris County was created in
1738. Warren County remained included in Morris County until Sussex County was created in

1753 and remained so until it was finally separated from Sussex and created Warren County on
November 20, 1824,

Within Warren County the original incorporated towns were Greenwich, Hardwick,
Independence, Knowlton, Mansfield, Oxford, and Paquarry Townships. Hope was separated

from Knowlton and Oxford on April 8, 1839 and Liberty Township was separated from Hope on
April 30, 1926.

Liberty Township, although it has only existed as an incorporated municipality since 1926, has
had a rich history leading back to the middle 1700°s when the area was part of Hope Township.
We find from James Snell, as outline in his “History of Sussex and Warren Counties, New
Jersey”. Hope was, at the time, one of the interior communities of the County and derived its
name from the Moravian pioneers who located the original village in 1769. Hope Township was
later separated from Oxford in 1839 and was given the name of Hope. At that point it consisted
of 30.17 square miles (19,309 acres) with a population of 1,570.

The township is described as being mountainous instead of hilly. Jenny Jump Mountain crosses
it in a southwesterly direction leaving the territory a little northwest of Green’s Pond.
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HISTORIC AND SCENIC SITES
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[image: image5.png]Green’s Pond is now known as Mountain Lake. It is named for the first settlers in the Township,
Samuel Green and his family, who came from Long Island at approximately the commencement
of the French and Indian War (Note: Find the exact dates) It is not certain as to where exactly
Mr. Green and his family first settled. There are conflicting views as to whether he settled near
Green’s Pond or near the village of Hope. Wherever he settled, he owned nearly all of what was
then Hope Township that included what is now the Township of Liberty.

The next settler known was Samson Howell who settled in this area in approximately 1767 or
1768. He built a sawmill, which was used to supply the Moravians with the lumber that they
needed for buildings at Hope Village. At approximately the same time the Moravian Brethren,
arriving from Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, purchased from Samuel Green 1,500 acres of land and
founded the Village of Hope. It appeared that the Moravians, a remarkably honest people,
trusted too much the honesty of those with whom they transacted business, suffered some
significant financial setbacks and in approximately 1805 abandoned Hope and returned to
Bethlehem and Nazareth in Pennsylvania.

The Moravians built the gristmill in the village, which remains as the Inn and Restaurant in
Hope. One of the financial disappointments was that John Swazey built his own grist mill in

competition with theirs in 1787 cutting into the revenue the Moravians needed to continue their
settlement in Hope.

Of the settlements in Liberty Township proper, originally known as Meng’s Mill, Townsbury is
the only one mentioned as being in existence in 1881. Townsbury is a small hamlet in the
southernmost area of the Township, lying along what is now US Route 46. At the time, the
Lehigh and Hudson River Railroad ran through Townsbury. Meng’s Mill was on the Townsbury
tract and in March of 1873, the tract was sold to William Shepley who in turn conveyed it in
April 1787 to Benjamin Town. As of 1881 the gristmill was over 100 years old and it was one of
the best mill sites on the Pequest River.

In what is now Liberty Township, the school districts 65, 66, and 67 Free Union and Townsbury
respectively used districts together. Enrolled were 183 students in three schoolhouses with a
total amount of funding spent for school purposes was approximately $900.00.

The Free Union Church was built in approximately 1865 and was historically a multi-
denominational church built by the combined efforts of people of all denominations solely for
the convenience of those living in that area. It was occupied by almost all denominations and, as
its name implies, was open to all for worship.

In addition to the early settlements reported by Snell, a significant mining activity took place
within the Township although none of them were particularly successful. New Jersey was once a
significant producer of iron ore. Between 1700 and 1900 approximately 400 iron mines were
opened in the state. However, by 1900 all but 20 mines had been closed or abandoned, as of
1950 only 5 were operating all of which closed in 1966. In 1977 Mount Hope Mine in
Rockaway Township reopened, but closed again after operating for approximately one year.
These old workings are significant both from the stand point of historic fabric, but also from the
stand point of subsequent land development and its relationship to existing old mine shafts.
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[image: image6.png]Roughly 81 known iron mines were active at one point or another in Warren County. Iron ore
comes in more than one variety. Those mined in Warren County were limonite, red hematite and

magnetite. For our purposes, however, we will review those mines opened briefly in Liberty
Township.

The mines in Liberty Township were known as those in the Jenny Jump Belt. This belt begins
just south of Belvidere running northeast along the east of the main ridge and terminates at the
northeast end of the ridge. A number of openings were made on the belt. Only one, however,
became prominent. This was known as the Kishpaugh mine. All the others were generally
exploratory, they may have shipped a little bit of ore but none of which was particularly rich.
The maps following indicate the location of those mines. See Exhibit 12.

The preceding is an excerpt for Abandoned Iron Mines of Warren County, New Jersey 1986,
prepared by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Pages 25-30.

The Environmental Commission has prepared listing of historical and scenic sites as indicated in
Exhibit 16. These sites are important in that although most of their history is lost, they give a
sense of character to the area and assist in maintaining the atmosphere that attracted and
continues to attract residents to this area. Many of these homes have been modified to conform
to the modern standards of habitability. However, they have retained the character that should be
respected in the event that they are subject to development pressure in the future
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